
 

1 

GOVERNORS ISLAND CORPORATION 

d/b/a THE TRUST FOR GOVERNORS ISLAND 

Meeting of the Directors 

Wednesday, March 20, 2024 at 9:30am 

 

AGENDA 

1. Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting of Directors on December 13, 2023 

2. President’s Report 

3. Committee Reports 

4. Design and Construction 

a. Authorization for a contract with AECOM USA, Inc. for design services in 

connection with electric ferry rapid charging infrastructure 

b. Authorization for a contract with CTA Architects P.C. for design services in 

connection with the Building 110 roof replacement 

c. Authorization for a contract with Bel-Air Electric Construction, Inc. for 

construction services in connection with the installation of transformers and 

associated electrical work 

d. Authorization to amend the contract with Reicon Group, LLC for construction 

services in connection with the reconstruction of the pile cluster separating Slip 5 

and Slip 6 at the Battery Maritime Building and the contract with Torvalsen 

Consulting, LLC d/b/a TMS Waterfront for resident engineering services 

 

 



 

2 

Tab 1 

 

Approval of Board 

Meeting Minutes from 

December 13, 2023 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF 

GOVERNORS ISLAND CORPORATION d/b/a 

THE TRUST FOR GOVERNORS ISLAND 

 

December 13, 2023 

 

A meeting of the Board of Directors of Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust for 

Governors Island (the “Trust”) was held on Wednesday, December 13, 2023, at 4 Irving Place, 

New York, NY 10003. 

 

The following members of the Board of Directors were present:1 

Carl Weisbrod, Acting Chairperson 

Alice Blank 

Christian Braneon 

Wendy Brawer 

Karen Brooks Hopkins 

Tim Cawley 

Carolee Fink 

Gaurav Kapadia 

Ben Lawsky 

J. Kelly McGowan 

Susan Mercandetti 

Marc Norman 

Michael Oppenheimer 

Daniel Squadron 

 

Also present were staff from the Trust and members of the public. 

Director Weisbrod, acting as Chairperson in the absence of Director Glen, started the meeting at 

approximately 9:37am.  Louis Coppersmith, the Trust’s Senior Counsel and acting secretary for 

the meeting, confirmed that a quorum was present. 

1. Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held September 20, 2023.  

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on 

September 20, 2023 were approved unanimously.  

 
1 Director Braneon joined the meeting during Item #2.  Director Fink left the meeting during Item #4.  Director Kapadia 

left the meeting following the vote on Item # 4. 



 

4 

2. President’s Report (Non-Voting Item). 

Clare Newman, the Trust’s President and CEO, provided a report on current developments 

concerning the Trust’s operations and plans, including a review of 2023 Island visitorship, public 

programming, planning and investment, and updates on the Climate Center project anchored by 

the New York Climate Exchange, Inc. (the “Exchange”). 

In response to a question from Director Brooks Hopkins, Ms. Newman, Sarah Krautheim, the 

Trust’s Senior Vice President of Public Affairs, and Chris Tepper, the Trust’s Chief Development 

Officer, discussed the funding and planning for the Nolan Park Cultural Campus.  In response to 

questions from Directors Weisbrod, McGowan, and Squadron, Ms. Newman discussed Island 

visitor statistics and ferry service to the Island.  In response to questions from Directors Weisbrod, 

Braneon, and Brawer, Ms. Newman and Director Weisbrod discussed the design process for the 

Exchange campus.  In response to questions from Directors McGowan, Mercandetti, and Brawer, 

Ms. Newman, Mr. Tepper, and Director Cawley discussed the Trust’s new hybrid-electric ferry 

under construction, electrification infrastructure, and sponsorship opportunities for ferries.  In 

response to a question from Director Oppenheimer, Director Weisbrod, Ms. Newman, Mr. Tepper, 

and Director Braneon discussed planning efforts currently underway by the US Army Corps of 

Engineers for New York Harbor. 

3. Committee Reports (Non-Voting Items). 

Director Fink presented a report of the Real Estate Committee.  Director Lawsky presented a report 

of the Audit Committee.  Ms. Newman presented a report of the Finance Committee.  In response 

to questions from Directors Cawley, Squadron, Brooks Hopkins, Kapadia, and Brawer, Ms. 

Newman, Ms. Krautheim, Director Weisbrod, and Director Mercandetti discussed the Trust’s 

budget, ferry ticket pricing structure, and event spaces on the Island. 

Director Weisbrod presented a report of the Governance Committee.  In response to a question 

from Director Oppenheimer, Mr. Coppersmith discussed the Director’s annual self-evaluation 

questionnaire and potential improvements to the self-evaluation process. 

4. Authorization to amend the lease with Collective Hotels and Retreats, Inc. (“Collective”) 

for a portion of the Western Development Zone. 

Mr. Tepper presented the item.  In response to questions from Directors Oppenheimer, 

Mercandetti, Kapadia, and Weisbrod, Mr. Tepper, Ms. Newman, and Director Cawley discussed 

the structure of the lease, Collective’s operations on the Island, and plans for the Western 

Development Zone.  In response to a question from Director Blank, Mr. Tepper and Ms. Krautheim 

discussed the expansion of the Urban Assembly New York Harbor School, including a new 

aquatics center to be constructed in the Western Development Zone. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the resolutions attached hereto as Schedule 1 were 

unanimously adopted.  



 

5 

5. Authorization to enter into a contract with Venable LLP for the provision of real estate and 

construction legal counsel services. 

Mr. Coppersmith presented the item.  In response to questions from Directors McGowan and 

Oppenheimer, Ms. Newman and Directors Weisbrod and Lawsky discussed the Trust’s 

procurement process and fee negotiation.   

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the resolutions attached hereto as Schedule 2 were 

unanimously adopted.  

6. Authorization for LiRo Program and Construction Management P.E., P.C., on behalf of the 

Trust, to enter into a contract with PJS Electric, Inc. for permitting and construction services 

in connection the installation of site lighting and telecom infrastructure 

Mr. Tepper presented the item.  In response to questions from Directors Braneon, Brawer, and 

Blank, Ms. Newman and Mr. Tepper discussed power source and the design process for the project, 

including the New York City Landmarks Preservation Commission’s approval of the lighting 

design. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the resolutions attached hereto as Schedule 3 were 

unanimously adopted.  

7. Authorization to amend the contract with Reicon Group, LLC for construction services in 

connection with the pile cluster separating Slip 5 and Slip 6 at the Battery Maritime 

Building. 

Mr. Tepper presented the item. In response to questions from Directors Blank and McGowan, Mr. 

Tepper and Director Weisbrod discussed the regulatory review and funding source of the proposed 

work. 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the resolutions attached hereto as Schedule 4 were 

unanimously adopted.  

8. Additional Discussion, Public Comment, and Adjournment.  

In response to a question from Director Brooks Hopkins, Ms. Newman discussed the hiring process 

for a Head Curator of Governors Island Arts & Vice President. 

Director Weisbrod then asked if anyone from the public had a statement they would like to make.  

Patti Davis, the Executive Director of Governors Island Alliance, Inc. d/b/a The Friends of 

Governors Island (“Friends”), discussed the 2023 peak season, thanked the Trust for its close 

collaboration with the Friends, and discussed year-end philanthropic opportunities to support 

Governors Island. 

Director Weisbrod adjourned the meeting at approximately 10:58am.  

 

*     *     * 

  



 

6 

SCHEDULE 1 

 

December 13, 2023 

 

AUTHORIZATION TO AMEND THE LEASE WITH COLLECTIVE HOTELS AND 

RETREATS, INC. FOR A PORTION OF THE WESTERN DEVELOPMENT ZONE 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust for Governors Island (the 

“Trust”) is hereby authorized to amend the lease with Collective Hotels and Retreats, Inc. dated as 

of September 23, 2022 in accordance with the material amendment terms presented to the 

Directors; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that the President of the Trust and her designees be, and each of them hereby is, 

authorized and empowered to execute all documents and to take all actions as she or they may 

deem necessary or appropriate to effectuate these resolutions. 

 

*     *     * 

  



 

7 

SCHEDULE 2 

 

December 13, 2023 

 

AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH VENABLE LLP FOR THE 

PROVISION OF REAL ESTATE AND CONSTRUCTION LEGAL COUNSEL SERVICES 

 

BE IT RESOLVED that Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust for Governors Island is 

hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Venable LLP for up to 5 years in accordance with 

the hourly rates approved by the Corporation Counsel of the City of New York or his or her 

designee, with a maximum contract price of $700,000, plus change order authority of up to 15% 

of the maximum contract price; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that the President of the Trust and her designees be, and each of them hereby is, 

authorized and empowered to execute all documents and to take all actions as she or they may 

deem necessary or appropriate to effectuate these resolutions. 

 

 

*     *     * 

  



 

8 

SCHEDULE 3 

 

December 13, 2023 

 

AUTHORIZATION FOR LIRO PROGRAM AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 

P.E., P.C., ON BEHALF OF THE TRUST, TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH PJS 

ELECTRIC, INC. FOR PERMITTING AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE INSTALLATION OF SITE LIGHTING AND TELECOM 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that LiRo Program and Construction Management P.E., P.C., on behalf of 

Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust for Governors Island (the “Trust”), is hereby 

authorized to enter into a contract with PJS Electric, Inc. for the provision of permitting, demolition 

and installation in connection with new site lighting on Governors Island with a maximum contract 

price of $10,500,000 and change-order authority of up to 15% of the maximum contract price; and 

be it further   

RESOLVED, that the President of the Trust and her designees be, and each of them hereby is, 

authorized and empowered to execute all documents and to take all actions as she or they may 

deem necessary or appropriate to effectuate these resolutions. 

 

 

*     *     * 

  



 

9 

SCHEDULE 4 

 

December 13, 2023 

 

AUTHORIZATION TO AMEND THE CONTRACT WITH REICON GROUP, LLC FOR 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES IN CONNECTION WITH THE PILE CLUSTER 

SEPARATING SLIP 5 AND SLIP 6 AT THE BATTERY MARITIME BUILDING 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust for Governors Island (the 

“Trust”) is hereby authorized to amend the contract with Reicon Group, LLC dated on or about 

December 11, 2020 (the “Pile Cluster Replacement Contract”) in accordance with the material 

contract terms presented to the Directors; and be it 

RESOLVED that the maximum contract price of the Pile Cluster Replacement Contract be 

increased to $2,985,000, plus change-order authority of up to 15% of the maximum contract price; 

and be it further 

RESOLVED, that the President of the Trust and her designees be, and each of them hereby is, 

authorized and empowered to execute all documents and to take all actions as she or they may 

deem necessary or appropriate to effectuate these resolutions. 

 

 

*     *     *  

 

 
 



 

10 

Tab 2 

 

President’s Report 

 



 

11 

Tab 3 

 

Committee Reports 
 

 



 

12 

Tab 4 

 

Design and 

Construction 



 

13 

Tab 4(a) 

 
 



 

14 

FOR CONSIDERATION 

March 20, 2024 

 

TO:   The Directors 

 

FROM:  Clare Newman, President and CEO 

 

SUBJECT: Ferry Rapid Charging System - Design Services 

 

REQUEST FOR: Authorization for: (i) LiRo Program and Construction Management P.E., 

P.C., (“LiRo”), on behalf of Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust 

for Governors Island (the “Trust”) to enter into a contract with AECOM 

USA, Inc. (“AECOM”) for design services in connection with electric ferry 

rapid charging infrastructure; and (ii) take related actions 

 

 

Background 

 

The Trust is constructing a new 190’ double-ended steel passenger and vehicle ferry (the “New 

Vehicle Ferry”), as authorized by the Directors at their June 2022 meeting.  The New Vehicle 

Ferry will be capable of carrying up to 1,100 passengers, will have 9,000 square feet of lane space 

for vehicles, and will replace the Trust’s existing primary vehicle ferry (the M/V SAMUEL S. 

COURSEN) that is approaching the end of its useful life.  When delivered in 2024, the New 

Vehicle Ferry will be the first battery-hybrid vessel of its size operating in New York Harbor.  The 

New Vehicle Ferry was intentionally designed with sufficient battery capacity for future all-

electric, zero-emissions operations that will require new shoreside rapid charging infrastructure to 

be designed and installed at the ferry terminal.  

 

In partnership with the New York City Department of Transportation, the Trust applied for federal 

grant funding allocated as part of the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (the “Infrastructure Investment 

and Jobs Act”), administered by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and intended 

specifically for the electrification of passenger ferries across the nation. In November 2023, the 

Trust was successfully awarded $7,500,000 of federal grant funds for the design and construction 

of rapid charging infrastructure at Soissons Landing to enable the New Vehicle Ferry to operate 

all-electric with zero emissions. The total project cost is estimated at $13,000,000 and the New 

York City Office of Management and Budget has allocated the balance of funding, $5,500,000, 

and added it to the Trust’s 10-year capital plan.   

 

On September 18, 2024, LiRo, on behalf of the Trust, issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for 

comprehensive design services for a new rapid charging system on Governors Island. The RFP 

received a total of five responses, and LiRo and the Trust selected the AECOM USA, Inc. proposal 

as the most advantageous.  The contract will be held by LiRo with oversight by Trust staff. 

 

  



 

15 

Material Contract Terms  

 

Design Consultant:     AECOM USA, Inc. 

      605 Third Avenue 

New York, NY 10158 

 

Scope of Services:  Design services for the Governors Island ferry rapid 

charging system to enable the New Vehicle Ferry to 

operate in all-electric, zero-emissions mode. 

 

Expected Duration of Work:   36 months, inclusive of construction administration 

 

Maximum Contract Price:  $2,000,000 

Plus authority to enter into change orders for up to 

15% of the maximum contract price 

 

Resolutions 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that LiRo Program and Construction Management P.E., P.C., on behalf of 

Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust for Governors Island (the “Trust”) is hereby 

authorized to enter into a contract with AECOM USA, Inc. for the provision of design services 

with a maximum contract price of $2,000,000 and change-order authority of up to 15% of the 

maximum contract price; and be it further  

 

RESOLVED, that the President of the Trust and her designees be, and each of them hereby is, 

authorized and empowered to execute all documents and to take all actions as she or they may 

deem necessary or appropriate to effectuate these resolutions. 

 

*     *     * 
 



 

16 

Tab 4(b) 
 



 

17 

FOR CONSIDERATION 

March 20, 2024 

 

TO:   The Directors 

 

FROM:  Clare Newman, President and CEO 

 

SUBJECT: Replacement of roof at Building 110 - Design Services 

 

REQUEST FOR: Authorization for: (i) LiRo Program and Construction Management P.E., 

P.C. (“LiRo”), on behalf of Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust 

for Governors Island (the “Trust”) to enter into contracts with CTA 

Architects P.C. for design services in connection with the Building 110 roof 

replacement; and (ii) take related actions 

 

 

Background 

 

Building 110, a two-story masonry building of approximately 48,000 gross square feet, is located 

on the waterfront on the north side of Andes Road west of Soissons Landing within the Governors 

Island Historic District.  Built in the 1870s, most of Building 110 is leased to the Lower Manhattan 

Cultural Council, Inc. (LMCC), a non-profit that provides workplace residency and exhibition 

space for artists and performances.  The building also houses the Island’s permanent public 

restrooms as well as electrical and mechanical equipment that serves the Soissons Landing lift 

bridges. 

 

Over the last three years the existing 24,000 square foot roof of Building 110 has experienced a 

number of leaks in various locations. After several rounds of investigations and attempted repairs 

by the Trust, including a report by one of the Trust’s on-call engineers, it was determined that the 

existing roof system is beyond repair and would need to be redesigned to account for the high 

winds and driving rain the building receives on the waterfront.   

 

The design scope for rooftop reconstruction encompasses investigation (including 

recommendations around using the rooftop for a solar PV array), cost estimating, design drawings, 

permitting and review with LPC and SHPO and construction administration services.  

 

On January 19, 2024, LiRo, on behalf of the Trust, issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for 

comprehensive design services for the reconstruction of the roof at Building 110. The RFP 

received a total of eleven responses.  LiRo and the Trust selected the CTA Architects P.C. proposal 

as the most advantageous, particularly considering the proposer’s fee and experience on similar 

projects.  The design contract will be held by LiRo with oversight by Trust staff. 

 

The work is funded in the Trust’s existing capital plan.   

  



 

18 

Material Contract Terms  

 

Design Consultant:     CTA Architects P.C. 

      151 West 26th Street, 8th Floor  

New York, NY 10001 

 

Scope of Services:  Design services for the replacement of the roof of 

Building 110. 

 

Expected Duration of Work:   18 months, inclusive of construction admin 

 

Maximum Contract Price:  $450,000 

Plus authority to enter into change orders for up to 

15% of the maximum contract price 

 

Resolutions 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that LiRo Program and Construction Management P.E., P.C., on behalf of 

Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust for Governors Island (the “Trust”) is hereby 

authorized to enter into a contract with CTA Architects P.C. for the provision of design services 

in connection with the design of the Building 110 roof replacement with a cumulative maximum 

contract price of $450,000 and change-order authority of up to 15% of the maximum contract 

price; and be it further.  

 

RESOLVED, that the President of the Trust and her designees be, and each of them hereby is, 

authorized and empowered to execute all documents and to take all actions as she or they may 

deem necessary or appropriate to effectuate these resolutions. 

 

*     *     * 
 

 



 

19 

Tab 4(c) 

 

 



 

20 

FOR CONSIDERATION 

March 20, 2024 

 

TO:   The Directors 

 

FROM:  Clare Newman, President and CEO 

 

SUBJECT: Electrical Transformer Replacement – Construction Services 

 

REQUEST FOR: Authorization for: (i) LiRo Program and Construction Management P.E., 

P.C. (“LiRo”), on behalf of Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust 

for Governors Island (the “Trust”), to enter into a contract with Bel-Air 

Electric Construction, Inc. (“Bel-Air”) for construction services in 

connection with the installation of transformers and associated electrical 

work; and (ii) take related actions 

 

 

Background 

 

The Trust owns and operates the electrical infrastructure and distribution equipment across 

Governors Island (the “Island”). Although all primary distribution feeders across the Island have 

been replaced in recent years, the majority of the existing legacy U.S. Coast Guard-era 

transformers and associated electrical equipment (e.g., load centers, conduit, and electrical panels) 

across the Historic District are beyond their useful lives and in need of replacement to support re-

tenanting. 

In 2017, the Trust’s construction manager, LiRo, contracted Syska Hennessy Group, Inc. to create 

a transformer replacement master plan and associated construction documents for the phased 

replacement of all 19 existing transformers in the Historic District to support the full reactivation 

of the buildings over time, as funding allowed and tenancies materialized.  

Now, as part of the phased replacement strategy, the Trust is seeking to install four new 

transformers and associated electrical equipment to repower all 20 buildings within the Nolan Park 

campus within the Historic District. These four transformers will provide sufficient power for all 

the buildings to be fully electrified and remove any remaining natural-gas fired building systems 

over time as the individual buildings are renovated, and to support their ongoing seasonal use.  In 

addition to the transformer installation, the project scope also includes “house connections” from 

the transformers via newly-installed conduit to upgraded interior building panels within all Nolan 

Park buildings. 

LiRo competitively bid the proposed work through a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) issued on 

October 20, 2023.  LiRo received a total of six responses to the RFP.  LiRo and the Trust selected 

the Bel-Air proposal as the most advantageous. The contract will be held by LiRo with oversight 

by Trust staff. 

The work is funded by existing City capital dollars in the Trust’s 10-year capital plan.  



 

21 

Material Contract Terms  

 

Construction Contractor:    Bel-Air Electric Construction, Inc. 

      30 Stewart Street 

      Hewlett, New York 11557 

 

Scope of Services:  Construction services 

 

Expected Duration of Work:   18 months 

 

Maximum Contract Price:  $5,500,000 

Plus authority to enter into change orders for up to 

15% of the maximum contract price 

 

Resolutions 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that LiRo Program and Construction Management P.E., P.C., on behalf of 

Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust for Governors Island (the “Trust”), is hereby 

authorized to enter into a contract with Bel-Air Electric Construction, Inc. for the provision of 

construction services in connection with transformer installation and associated electrical work, 

with a maximum contract price of $5,500,000 and change-order authority of up to 15% of the 

maximum contract price; and be it further.  

 

RESOLVED, that the President of the Trust and her designees be, and each of them hereby is, 

authorized and empowered to execute all documents and to take all actions as she or they may 

deem necessary or appropriate to effectuate these resolutions. 

 

*     *     * 



 

22 

Tab 4(d) 

 

 
 

 



 

23 

FOR CONSIDERATION 

March 20, 2024 

 

TO:   The Directors 

 

FROM:  Clare Newman, President and CEO 

 

SUBJECT: Battery Maritime Building Slips 5/6 Pile Cluster Replacement Project - 

Construction and Resident Engineering Services 

 

REQUEST FOR: Authorization to: (i) amend the contract between Governors Island 

Corporation d/b/a The Trust for Governors Island (the “Trust) and Reicon 

Group, LLC (“Reicon”) in connection with the reconstruction of the pile 

cluster separating Slips 5&6 at the Battery Maritime Building (“BMB”); (ii) 

amend the contract between the Trust and Torvalsen Consulting, LLC d/b/a 

TMS Waterfront (“TMS”) for resident engineering services and (iii) take 

related actions 

 

 

Background 

 

On September 30, 2020, the Directors authorized the Trust to enter into a contract with Reicon 

(the “Pile Cluster Replacement Contract”) for construction services in connection with the 

replacement of the legacy timber pile cluster separating Slip 5 and Slip 6 at the BMB with a new 

resilient system made of steel, concrete and rubber fenders.  After mobilizing at the site and 

removing the existing damaged timber structure, Reicon discovered significant unforeseen 

conditions below the mudline which were reviewed and verified by the Trust’s resident engineer.  

Most significantly, the condition of the bedrock itself requires a change in means and methods for 

the installation, including pin-piles to be drilled into the bedrock. Because the project site sits 

directly over the Metropolitan Transit Authority (“MTA”) Joralemon Tunnel for the 4/5 Lexington 

Avenue Express subway line, the incorporation of drilled piles into the work plan requires 

additional engineering and review and approval by the MTA.  

 

On December 13, 2023, the Directors authorized the Trust to amend the Pile Cluster Replacement 

Contract to include the additional required geotechnical engineering and associated services.  At 

that time, Trust staff noted that they would return to request additional approvals from the Directors 

after the cost of the additional construction was refined based on the revised installation approach.  

The additional geotechnical drawings and work plan have been reviewed and approved by the 

MTA. In addition to the increased hard cost work, the revised work plan includes enhanced 

monitoring of the MTA Joralemon Tunnel. 

 

The Trust seeks to amend the Pile Cluster Replacement Contract to increase the maximum contract 

price to include funds for the additional construction and monitoring work to implement the 

revised work plan. 

 



 

24 

Additionally, as required by the New York State Department of Transportation, the administrator 

of federal funds for this project, the Trust must retain a resident engineer to provide third-party 

oversight and technical expertise.  On June 22, 2022, the Directors authorized the Trust to enter 

into a contract with TMS for resident engineering services for the project (the “Resident 

Engineering Contract”). 

 

The Trust seeks to amend the Resident Engineering Contract to increase its maximum contract 

price to include funds for additional resident engineering services for the extended construction 

duration, through project closeout. 

 

Funds for the additional construction and resident engineering work are available in the Trust’s 

existing capital budget, which includes capital funds from both the City of New York and federal 

funds administered by the New York State Department of Transportation for this project. 

 

Material Contract Amendment Terms – Pile Cluster Replacement Contract 

 

Contractor: Reicon Group, LLC 

1983 Richmond Terrace 

Staten Island, New York 10302 

 

Scope of Services: Rehabilitation of the BMB pile cluster 

between Slip 5 and Slip 6 

 

Additional Scope of Services: Additional construction and MTA tunnel 

monitoring work to implement the 

geotechnical work plan and proceed with 

construction 

 

Existing Maximum Contract Price, including 

all change-order authority: $3,432,750 

 

Requested Increase in Maximum Price: $3,000,000 

 

New Maximum Contract Price: $6,432,750 

Plus authority to enter into change orders for 

up to 15% of the Maximum Contract Price 

 

Material Contract Amendment Terms – Resident Engineering Contract 

 

Contractor: Torvalsen Consulting, LLC  

 d/b/a TMS Waterfront 

1 Van Houten Street 

New York, New York 10960 

 

Scope of Services: Resident engineering services in connection 

with the rehabilitation of the pile cluster 



 

25 

between Slip 5 and Slip 6 at the BMB 

 

Additional Scope of Services: Additional resident engineering services for 

extended construction 

 

Original Maximum Contract Price, including 

all change-order authority: $373,750 

 

Requested Increase in Maximum Price: $150,000 

 

New Maximum Contract Price: $523,750 

Plus authority to enter into change orders for 

up to 15% of the Maximum Contract Price 

 

 

Resolutions 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that Governors Island Corporation d/b/a The Trust for Governors Island (the 

“Trust”) is hereby authorized to amend the contract with Reicon Group, LLC dated on or about 

December 11, 2020 (the “Pile Cluster Replacement Contract”) in accordance with the material 

contract terms presented to the Directors; and be it 

 

RESOLVED that the maximum contract price of the Pile Cluster Replacement Contract be 

increased to $6,432,750, plus change-order authority of up to 15% of the maximum contract price; 

and be it  

 

RESOLVED that the Trust is hereby authorized to amend the contract with Torvalsen Consulting, 

LLC d/b/a TMS Waterfront dated as of July 29, 2022 (the “Resident Engineering Contract”) in 

accordance with the material contract terms presented to the Directors; and be it 

 

RESOLVED that the maximum contract price of the Resident Engineering Contract be increased 

to $523,750, plus change-order authority of up to 15% of the maximum contract price; and be it 

further 

 

RESOLVED, that the President of the Trust and her designees be, and each of them hereby is, 

authorized and empowered to execute all documents and to take all actions as she or they may 

deem necessary or appropriate to effectuate these resolutions. 

 

*     *     * 

 


